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September 1, 2022

Mike Witzansky, City Manager
City of Redondo Beach

415 Diamond Street

Redondo Beach, CA 90277

Dear Mike Witzansky:
RE: Redondo Beach’s 6" Cycle (2021-2029) Adopted Housing Element

Thank you for submitting the City of Redondo Beach’s (City) housing element adopted
July 5, 2022 and received for review on July 11, 2022. Pursuant to Government Code
section 65585, subdivision (h), the California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD) is reporting the results of its review. HCD considered comments
from Oliver Fries, Leo Pustilnikov, Dawn Sarmiento, Chris Voisey, Mushki Gorowitz,
Abundant Housing LA, YIMBY Law, John & Laurie Oester, Josh Albrekston, Grace
Peng and Susan Andrade pursuant to Government Code section 65585, subdivision (c).

HCD is pleased to find the adopted housing element in full compliance with State
Housing Element Law (Article 10.6 of the Gov. Code). The adopted element addresses
the statutory requirements described in HCD’s April 12, 2022 review, including required
analysis of sites proposed for rezoning and amendments to multiple programs, including
programs to affirmatively further fair housing.

HCD commends the inclusion of an executive summary in the housing element. By
providing additional history and context regarding policy decisions, the executive
summary assists the public in its review of the housing element. The City must continue
timely and effective implementation of all programs including but not limited to the
following:

e Program 6 (Affordable Housing Development) includes multiple strategies and
incentives to facilitate affordable housing development for a variety of housing
types.

e Program 8 (Residential Sites Inventory and Monitoring No Net Loss) commits to
rezone sites to address a shortfall of sites available to accommodate affordable
housing and to ensure the City’s Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) can
be accommodated for all income levels at all times throughout the planning
period.
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e Program 9 (By-Right Approval for Projects with 20 Percent Affordable Units)
ensures nondiscretionary processing for nonvacant sites identified in the City’s
previous housing element.

e Program 11 (Small Lot Development/Lot Consolidation) facilitates, incentivizes,
and expedites affordable development on small lots, including the consolidation
of small lots.

e Program 12 (Accessory Dwelling Units) includes actions to facilitate the
development of 240 ADUs within the planning period, monitor the City’s
progress in meeting the goal, and adjusting its strategies and incentives if the
City is not meeting that goal in 2025.

e Program 13 (Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance) commits to update the
City’s Zoning Ordinance to comply with multiple state laws and implement the
City’s new General Plan.

e Program 14 (Objective Design Standards) commits the City to update existing
design standards to create objective standards by the end of 2022 and the
create objective standards for rezoned sites by October 15, 2024.

e Program 15 (Monitoring the Effect of Article 27 of the City Charter [Measure
DD]) ensures the City monitors and responds appropriately to votes of the
electorate, including a vote regarding the recommended Land Use Plan of the
General Plan and associated rezoning required by State Housing Element Law.

e Program 18 (Fair Housing) includes a variety of actions to ensure that the City
meets its obligation to Affirmatively Further Fair Housing (AFFH) pursuant to
Government Code section 8899.50.

HCD acknowledges that although the City Council adopted a Preferred Land Use Plan
in May 2021, the City is still in the process of updating its general plan, including the
land use element. This update requires approval by the electorate. The City anticipates
placing the issue on the ballot in March 2023 with multiple implementing program
actions to be completed subsequent to voter approval. The housing element has been
written to be consistent with the Preferred Land Use Plan. Should the ballot measure be
disapproved by the electorate, the City must take additional timely actions as outlined in
Program 15 (Monitoring the Effect of Article 27 of the City Charter [Measure DD]) to
ensure continued compliance with State Housing Element Law.

Regarding Program 13 (Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance), HCD reminds the City
that although the Zoning Ordinance may not be updated, and regardless of housing
element compliance status, the City has an obligation to apply current state law as
opposed to an outdated zoning code, examples include:

Density Bonus,

Transitional and Supportive Housing,

Emergency Shelters and Low Barrier Navigation Centers,
Affordable Housing Streamlined Approval (SB 35),
Employee Housing,
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e Reasonable Accommodation,
e Definition of Family, and
¢ Unlicensed Group Homes.

The element includes Program 8 (Residential Sites Inventory and Monitoring of No Net
Loss) identifying adequate sites to accommodate the shortfall of 1,164 units for lower-
income households. Among other things, the program commits to zoning with densities
of 20-55 units per acre and permitting owner-occupied and rental multifamily uses by
right for developments in which 20 percent or more of the units are affordable to lower
income households. Pursuant to Senate Bill 197 (Chapter 70, Statutes of 2022), as the
City failed to adopt a compliant housing element within 120 days of the statutory
deadline (October 15, 2021), Program 8 (Residential Sites Inventory and Monitoring of
No Net Loss) must be completed no later than three years and 120 days from the
statutory deadline (February 12, 2025). Otherwise, the local government’s housing
element will no longer comply with State Housing Element Law, and HCD may revoke
its finding of substantial compliance pursuant to Government Code section 65585,
subdivision (i).

The City must monitor and report on the results of all housing element programs
through the annual progress report, required pursuant to Government Code section
65400. Please be aware, Government Code section 65585, subdivision (i) grants HCD
authority to review any action or failure to act by a local government that it determines is
inconsistent with an adopted housing element or housing element law. This includes
failure to implement program actions included in the housing element. HCD may revoke
housing element compliance if the local government’s actions do not comply with state
law.

Several federal, state, and regional funding programs consider housing element
compliance as an eligibility or ranking criteria. For example, the CalTrans Senate Bill
(SB) 1 Sustainable Communities grant; the Strategic Growth Council and HCD’s
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities programs; and HCD’s Permanent
Local Housing Allocation consider housing element compliance and/or annual reporting
requirements pursuant to Government Code section 65400. With a compliant housing
element, the City meets housing element requirements for these and other funding
sources.

For your information, some general plan element updates are triggered by housing
element adoption. HCD reminds the City to consider timing provisions and welcomes
the opportunity to provide assistance. For information, please see the Technical
Advisories issued by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research at:
https://www.opr.ca.gov/planning/general-plan/guidelines.html.
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HCD appreciates the dedication, professionalism, cooperation, and assistance the
City’s housing element team provided throughout the course of the housing element
review. Among others, the team included yourself, Brandy Forbes, Community
Development Director, Sean Scully, Planning Manager, and the City’s consultant,
Veronica Tam. HCD wishes the City success in implementing its housing element and
looks forward to following its progress through the General Plan annual progress reports
pursuant to Government Code section 65400. If HCD can provide assistance in
implementing the housing element, please contact Robin Huntley, of our staff, at
Robin.Huntley@hcd.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Paul McDougall
Senior Program Manager
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